Michael Dewar

* A man whose life was blighted and dominated by two world wars.
* Was a major contributor to Britain’s successful defences through his
engineering skills

* Who lost his son Michael serving in the RAF and buried in a
Commonwealth War Grave

* Who found peace in the solitude of Little Horwood Church and his
farming activities in Little Horwood

* Died on 27 December 1950 leaving an Estate of £464,410

* Timken USA exercised their option to buy Michaels British Timken
Shares






Michael Dewar’s Executors sell Manor and
Warren Farms — February 1951

By direction of the Executors of the late Mr. Michael Dewar

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE

Winslow 34 miles, Bletchley 5 miles, Buckingham 7 miles, London 50 miles.

Partis , Plan and Conditi of Sale of the

FREEHOLD AGRICULTURAL PORTIONS OF THE

LITTLE HORWOOD MANOR
ESTATE

ABOUT 75 1 ACRES
TWO FIRST CLASS T.T. ATTESTED DAIRY AND
MIXED FARMS

TWO FARMHOUSES, SIX COTTAGES, EXCELLENT BUILDINGS
comprising about 219 & 363 acres respectively

ACCOMMODATION LAND AND PASTURE LAND
COTTAGE HOLDING WITH TWO DETACHED COTTAGES

WITH VACANT POSSESSION
(Subject to Service occupations)
Except for a Cottage and about 3 acres

To be offered for Sale by Auction as a Whole or in 5 Lots by Messts.

Joe R ENE (& SON

in conjunction with Messrs.

KNIGHT, FRANK & RUTLEY

The Mansion House, Entrance Lodges and about 26 Acres having been sold

At YE OLDE BULL'S HEAD HOTEL, AYLESBURY
On WEDNESDAY, the z0th day of FEBRUARY, 1952
At 3.30 p.m. (unless previously sold)
Solicitors :  Messrs. FINNIS, DOWNEY, LINNELL & PRICE, 5 Clifford Street,
London, W.1. (Tel. REGent 6584)
Auctioncers : Messrs. KNIGHT, FRANK & RUTLEY, 20 Hanover Square,
London, W.1. (Tel. MAYfair 3771)

Messrs. J. R. EVE & SON, 40 Mill Street, Bedford. (Tel. Bedford 67301)
Also at Hitchin and Westminster



Judith Close Smith

After the Sale of the Manor Estate in 1952 his wife Judith moved to
Steart Hill Little Horwood where George Gee had lived during the war,
and married Colonel Richard Close Smith in April 1954 in Westminster.



Sale of Manor Farm to Partington’s Trustees

* Bernard and Peggy Westcott came to live in Manor Farm in 1951.
* They had previously had a cattle ranch in Argentina

* Bernard’s Father had been Lord Mayor of Manchester and had used a
family trust to buy the farm.

* Bernard’s mother was not seeing their daughter Sue so they returned
to England.

 Bernard was a Parish Councillor and Recreation Ground Trustee and
Peggy was a keen member of the W1 and Church Choir

* They leased a new right of way into the Rec and and extra half acre
on to the end of the Rec.



Sale of Warren Farm

* In 1951 to Robert Brett was a Poultry Farmer from Bromham who
never took any interest in the village and sold again within a couple of
years

* Followed by Jack and Ken Parrish from Higham Gobion

* When Jack’s daughter Candy married Richard Godber they moved in
to Warren Farm. They took a very active role in the village, Richard
being a Parish Councillor and a Recreation Ground trustee and always
brought a cricket 11 to play the village side.

* Richards father Joe was Minister of Agriculture.
* Richard later became High Sheriff of Bucks.



Extracts from Annual Parochial Church Council
Meeting of 6" April 1955 in the School

e Chairs in bad condition treated for woodworm

* New Pews fund started by a collection at the Old Ryde Parents Sunday
service on 12t December

* A Scale Plan of the Churchyard had been drawn up to have all known
graves marked on it

* Future of the Church School with aided status would cause heavy
commitments for the Parish. Alternative would be relinquish our rights and

let it pass to state control.

* A handsome gift of a new east window by Mrs Close Smith was accepted
with work to start shortly

* Mrs Mallett replaced Mrs Stonall as Church Cleaner






St Nicholas Little Horwood East window
5ft5ins x 10ft by Michael Farrar Bell of
Haddenham 1911 to 1993 (25 Churches in Bucks)




The Window service of dedication October
1955 singing the hymn “For all the Saints”

* The Procession into the Church led by the Bishop of Buckingham Robert
Hay in Cape and Mitre

* Bishops Chaplin Rev T H Flynn Headmaster of “The Old Ride School”
* Followed by Clergy- Rev C S Jones taking the 15t part of the service

* The Church Wardens — Charlie Grainge and Albert Smith assisted by Dr
Wyatt from The Old Oaks Woodend

St Nicholas Church Choir- Female Choristers in red robes (Choir Master
Robert Britten)

* Boys of The Old Ride School

* Window designed and made by Mr Farrar-Bell of Haddenham who was
present



St Nicholas Church Choir before the service to
dedicate the East Window
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Lay reader Cook from Bletchley a short fat
man with a shiny bald head and beady eyes

* Isn’t it strange, that Princes and Kings
* And Clowns that prance in Sawdust Rings
* And ordinary folk like you and me

* Are on our way to eternity

By this time the small boys giggles had spread to the rest of the choir
as a stream of urine flowed down the Chancel, the boys clearly had

not controlled themselves



St Nicholas of Myra
Patron Saint of Children and Sailors




Who was St Nicholas of Myra?

* Born 15-3-270 AD at Patara (now modern day Bari in Italy where he is now
buried in Basilica San Nicola)

* Early Christian Bishop of Greek descent lived at the maritime city of Myra
now modern day Demre, Anatalya, Turkey

* Because of the many miracles attributed to him he was also known as
Nicholas the Wonderworker

* The Feast of St Nicholas is celebrated on 6t" December in Western Countries
but on 19t December in Eastern Countries where they use the old Church
Calendar.

e Patron Saint of Sailors, Children , Wolves and Pawnbrokers
* The Inspiration for Santa Claus
* Died 6-12-343 AD at Myra



Myra

* Myra was one of 19 great cities in the federation of Lycia in Southern
Turkey dating from 5t Century BC.

* The Cities wealth came from it’s coastal trade supplying incense to
Egypt and Constantinoble

* Sulphur Springs provided Therapeutic baths and healing drinking
waters

e Carved out Tombs for the dead in Cliff Faces
* Myra had a magnificent Theatre












Service Sheet explanation of the windows
features

Saint Nicholas of Myra as the patron saint of sailors, travellers,

merchants, children, schoolboys and against thieves,

LEFT HAND LIGHT

Top panel. St. Nicholas then a priest, while on a journey by ship to
the Holy Land, restored to life one of the sailors who had been drowned by
falling overboard.

Middle panel. The Bishop of Myra having died, the clergy decided to
consecrate the first man to enter the Cathedral the next morning as the new
Bishop. This was St. Nicholas.

Bottom pancl. Three ships, laden with corn destined for another place
called at the port of Myra which was undergoing a severe famine. St. Nicholas
asked the captains to off load a portion of their cargo, assuring them they
would have none the Jess to deliver at Constantinopl

. This was found to be
50 and that which was left at Myra miraculously increased so that there was
enough for two years supply.

RIGHT HAND LIGHT

Top panel. A man, desiring a son, vowed a gold cup to St. Nicholas if his
prayer was granted. The gold cup having been ordered, he found it too magni-
ficent to part with and procured an inferior one for the Sa
ing water in the gold cup, fell into the river and was drowned. The father, not
withstanding his grief; still presented the lesser cup which fell off the altar
three times, While the parents were praying in the church their son appeared
holding the gold cup, saying he had been preserved by St. Nicholas. In his
joy the father offered hoth cups which were now accepted.

int. The son, fetch-

Middle panel. During a famine at Myra an evil man stole and killed
little children, salting them for eating. He offered some of this fearful food
to St. Nicholas who, perceiving what it was, brought the children back to life.

Botom panel. A jewish merchant believing in the power of St. Nicholas
sct an image of the Saint over his treasures to guard them. Despite this
they were stolen by robbers. Full of rage, the Jew struck and mutilated the
image ; that night St. Nicholas appeared to the robbers, wounded and bleeding.
They were so much alarmed they restored the stolen goods to the Jew who
became converted by the miracle.

Tracer; In the centre, the emblem of St. Nicholas, an Anchor. To
the left the Coat of Arms of the late Michacl Dewar, Fsq., on the right his
heraldic badge especially granted for his work with tanks and armoured

vehicles during the war.




The Anchor Emblem of St Nicholas of Myra




East Window Tribute to Michael Dewar-
Sherman Tank used at El Alamein
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Michael Dewar- Coat of Arms
(Former High Sheriff of Hertfordshire)




St Nicholas as a Priest on a journey to the Holy
Land Restores the life of a drowned sailor




The Bishop of Myra having died, the Clergy
decided to consecrate the first man to enter
the Cathedral the next morning- St Nicholas
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Myra undergoing famine, St Nicholas persuades 3
ships laden with corn to unload without affecting
their main mission




Gold Cups presented to St Nicholas after a man’
son who was feared drowned was preserved by St
Nicholas




St Nicholas bringing children back to life from a
barrel after an evil man had killed little children in
a famine




Restoration of Stolen Treasures to Jewish
merchant from robbers by St Nicholas which
converted the Jew to Christianity




Extract from Minutes of PCC meeting in the
school 15 May 1956

* Present: The Rev T H Flynn , Mrs Westcott, Mrs Close Smith, Mr
Charlie Grainge , Mr Albert Smith, Mr Haynes, Mr & Mrs De Silva, Mr
Beckett, Mrs Jones and Secretary.

* In the absence of the vicar Mr Charlie Grainge took the Chair

* Fete Committee for 215t July: Chairman Harvey Wyatt, Mr A Beckett,
Mr Grainge , Mr Albert Smith, Mrs Westcott, Mrs Close Smith, Mrs De

Silva, Mrs R Bull, Mrs D Hood

* Mr Beckett produced drawings for pews by Messrs B North & Son,
High Wycombe for a 9ft 7in pew at £30 each

* The firm was currently furnishing a church in London and Mrs Close
Smith agreed to go and inspect the work there. A rep from the firm
was due to visit Little Horwood on 26t May



Extract from PCC Minutes of 20" February
1957

 Mr de Silva said the Pew Fund balance stood at £130

e Three New Pews were to be installed with a frontal on the North side
of the church

* The Vicar announced that the Bishop of Oxford would visit the Parish
on 2"9 June.

* A proposal was made to the Ministry of Education that the school be
retained for 3 years with Interim Aided Status, this will involve outlay
for exterior decoration but the Interior decoration and playground
will be paid for by the Ministry



Dedication of the Pews 1957

St. RNicholas, Little Borwood

_|_

Dedication

of the

Pew Petws and Petohead

THE LORD BISHOP OF OXFORD
SUNDAY, JUNE ‘2nd, 1957

11 am.



Extract from PCC Minutes of 2" October
1957/

* The Fete Profits were £150.15s.8d

* Mrs de Silva proposed and Mr Norman Bull seconded a proposal that
the Profits from the Jumble Stall of £101.14s.11d be allocated to the

Pew Fund which was unanimously carried.

* The Vicar explained that the New Pews had proved to be not of the
correct size wherever they were placed in the Church. The only
solution was to alter the length of the pews.

* It was proposed by Mr de silva and seconded by Mrs King that the
estimate of £75 for two new pews from B North & Sons be accepted

* Mrs Savage replaced Mrs Mallett as church cleaner.






Medieval
Wall Paintings

E. CLIVE ROUSE







Medieval Wall Paintings- 13t Century onwards
found under Limewash in 1889 on North Wall

* 1 bottom left is partly exposed of St Nicholas in episcopal vestments, next to him
two figures rising from a barrel(third probably hidden under palimpsest painting)
representing the resurrection of the three murdered boys.

 East of the barrel part of another figure, further east 3 knights in chainmail, the
result of St Nicholas prayers when three sisters each married a knight and received
a bag of gold, dated 1230 ad.

2 Palimpsest (something inscribed over something else ) on 1 is a representation of
the seven deadly sins, the large nude figure possibly the devil representing Pride the
six other sins around him, Envy, Anger, Avarice, Sloth, Lust, and Gluttony dated
around 1500 ad

* 3 The hardly visible series is of St Christopher and dates from 1340 ad.

* 4 North doorway bricked up in 1889 was exposed on renovation of murals by Ann
Ballantyne (an assistant of E Clive Rouse) in 1995 who kindly gave talks at the Church
Fete about the renovations.






